
Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Supplementary information
Wednesday, June 16, 2021, 7:00pm

Zoom meeting
502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard President

Notes prepared by Library Director Rachael Fox

The Hood River County Library District is taking steps to limit exposure and spread of COVID-
19 (novel coronavirus). In support of state and federal guidelines for physical distancing, the 
Hood River County Library District will hold this meeting by using Zoom Conferencing. 

Please use the following phone number or video link: 
1-253-215-8782 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88987942233
Meeting ID: 889 8794 2233

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard

III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from May 18, 2021 meeting
IV. Open forum for the general public   Sheppard  

V. Reports 

i. April and May 2021 Financial Statements                                           
ii. Director's report Fox

VI. Previous business
i. Reopening plans: Library Services Fox

VII. New business   
i. 2021-22 Budget approval (ACTION) Sheppard

I. Budget hearing
ii. 2021-22 Salary Schedule approval (ACTION) Sheppard

iii. Approval of recurring payments for 2021-22 (ACTION) Sheppard

iv. Discussion of 2021-22 President and Vice-President positions
v. Discussion of regular meeting time Sheppard

vi. Library Director contract renewal (ACTION) Sheppard

vii. Bookmobile Procurement (ACTION)                       Sheppard

viii. Window tint discussion                                                       Fox 

VIII. Agenda items for next meeting                                               Sheppard

IX. Adjournment                                                                                            

Board meeting agenda [2021-06-16] 1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88987942233


_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, 
Executive Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled
for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the 
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign 
language interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is 
given.

Page 2

Board meeting agenda [2021-06-16] 2



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Agenda

Supplementary information
Wednesday, June 16, 2021, 7:00pm

Zoom meeting
502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard President

Notes prepared by Library Director Rachael Fox

The Hood River County Library District is taking steps to limit exposure and spread of COVID-
19 (novel coronavirus). In support of state and federal guidelines for physical distancing, the 
Hood River County Library District will hold this meeting by using Zoom Conferencing. 

Please use the following phone number or video link: 
1-253-215-8782 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88987942233
Meeting ID: 889 8794 2233

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard

III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Sheppard

i. Minutes from May 18, 2021 meeting
Attachment: 

• III.i.a. Minutes from the May 18, 2021, regular meeting
• III.i.b. Minutes from the May 11, 2021, Budget Committee Meeting
• III.i.c. Minutes from the May 18, 2021, Budget Committee Meeting

IV. Open forum for the general public   Sheppard  
 

V. Reports 

i. Friends update   Fox
• The Friends of the Library did not meet in June 

ii. Foundation update Fox
• The Foundation Board will create an eNewsletter to update their members on 

Foundation activities during the pandemic. 
• The Foundation and Friends will hold a donor appreciation event in the library 

gardens on September 18, 2021.
• The Foundation is encouraging patrons to purchase donor bricks for the gardens by

July 31. 
• The Library Foundation board approved their annual donation to the District.

◦ Bookmobile donation: $140,500 ($128,000 new donations; remainder from 
previous years FOW and Annual Giving Campaign)

Board meeting agenda [2021-06-16], supplementary 3

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88987942233


◦ Support for other areas: $10,000
▪ Due to the pandemic, I paused our newspaper subscriptions and several of 

our magazine subscriptions while our buildings were closed to the public. We
eliminated an auto repair and language learning database which were not 
well used by our patrons. We paused another database which only could be 
accessed inside the library buildings. We added two new databases for 
creative crafting and language learning. Due to the changes and the 
Foundation’s additional $4,000 donation for new databases in May 2020, we 
will carry over $10,700 into fiscal year 2021-22. The Foundation board 
agreed to apply the funds toward the electronic resources request below.

▪ Magazines and newspapers - $5,000
• For the past nine years, the Library Foundation has supported all of our 

magazine and newspaper subscriptions. This is a popular collection, both
in terms of circulation and in-library use. Eight years ago, the Foundation 
also funded the new magazine shelves and area, which has been very 
well-received. This year we added a few new titles.

▪ Electronic resources - $4,300 ($15,000 current year expense -
$10,700 carry over)
• In years past, the Foundation has also supported our popular electronic 

resources, including the downloadable media service Library2Go, the 
kids e-book service TumbleBooks, the genealogy resources 
Ancestry.com, Kanopy streaming, and the language-learning database 
Mango. 

▪ Movie licensing - $700
• Due to the pandemic, we do not plan on offering indoor movies this 

summer. We will be showing movies to teen in the gardens this summer. 
Each year we pay two companies Movie Licensing USA and Motion 
Picture Licensing Corporation to have the licensing rights to screen 
movies for the public.

iii. April and May 2021 Financial Statements                                 Fox
Attachments: 

◦ V.iii.a. April 2021 financial statements
◦ V.iii.b. May 2021 financial statements

We received $33,000 in current year tax revenue in April/May. Tax payers have the option of 
making their property tax payments in three installments and the third installment was due on 
May 15, 2021. Overall, we have received $1,093,752 this year in total tax revenue (current 
and previous years) for the General Fund. 

iv. Director's report Fox

Facilities

Page 2

Board meeting agenda [2021-06-16], supplementary 4



• Our new concrete light pole will be installed in the library gardens this month. The light 
pole was removed two years ago because it showed signs of cracking and had 
become a safety hazard. 

• Odell space
◦ I am still working with Jenny Logsdon from Wyeast Laboratories to lease the Library

District a space for free to offer library programming. This will be temporary for six 
months with the potential to renew the contract for (2) three month intervals. It will 
not exceed 1 year. I contacted the County of Hood River and discovered the area is
zoned light industrial. Since library services do not fall into the light industrial 
zoning, the library will be allowed to use the space in Odell by applying for a minor 
modification permit. This is for temporary use for up to one year. It will involve a 
$300 fee which the Library District will pay. 

Programs and Services
◦ This year summer reading will look different. We will use the Beanstack, on online 

tracking tool for our program. Kids, teens and adults will sign up online to track their
reading goals for prizes! If a patron does not have online access, they can still 
participate. Library staff will track their progress for them and we will have paper 
forms for the kids program. We plan to offer limited in-person programming at the 
library. For more information, https://hoodriverlibrary.org/summer-reading/.

◦ The program staff have been working hard to provide creative programming for this 
summer. It’s a mix of online programs and small in-person outside programs. 
Please check out our newsletter for a full list of programs in June, 
https://conta.cc/3h8hPMm

◦ We are now offering our monthly eNewsletter in Spanish, too. 

◦ June programs 

▪ Adult programs

◦ Writing Workshop with Jennifer Hanlon-Wilde
Wednesday, June 30 6:30 p.m.

Participants will spend 90 minutes writing from prompts, with an 
emphasis on sensory descriptions and dialogue. Time will be reserved at 
the end for questions and answers about the Multnomah Library Writers' 
Project and Portland State University's Ooligan Press.

Jennifer Hanlon Wilde is a writer, teacher, nurse practitioner, and mother 
of three. She lives in Hood River, Oregon with her family.

◦ Teen programs

◦ In the Heights Virtual Book Tour
June 15 at 5 pm in the Library Gardens

Page 3

Board meeting agenda [2021-06-16], supplementary 5

https://conta.cc/3h8hPMm
https://hoodriverlibrary.org/event/28560/%20%E2%80%8E
https://hoodriverlibrary.org/summer-reading/


Teens can  participate in a Zoom chat with the minds behind the musical, 
movie, and book of In the Heights! Register on the library website.

◦ Mediocre Movie Night
June's Teen Movie won't be as bad as the movie in May, but that won't 
stop us! Join us in the Library Garden for snacks and movie fun. Open to 
patrons 12 to 20, please visit the Teen Page to find title details and to 
register. Date and time TBA.

• Teen take-home craft
To celebrate Pride Month and other reasons to be crafty, teens can pick 
up a boondoggle cord keychain kit in the colors that speak to them.

• Marvel Show Trivia Night: June 30 at 8 p.m. 
As we get into the season Loki, here is a challenge to see how much we 
really know about Marvel tv shows. A little bit of everything and a lot of 
the new MCU shows, this event is open to teens and adults. Join us in 
person or play online after the event. Registration Required. 

• Kids programs

◦ Storytime [Facebook]
Thursdays, 10:30 a.m.
Join Teacher Jana each week for stories and songs! Live on Facebook.

◦ Kids Summer Reading 2021
Sign up on Beanstack to earn a cookie coupon, a free book, and a 
certificate for Mike's Ice Cream! For kids ages 3-12, choose your age 
bracket and log your reading hours to earn your prizes. For babies and 
toddlers ages 0-2, complete 15 activities to earn your prizes. The kids' 
library will soon be receiving 200 butterfly eggs! Families visiting the 
library this summer will be able to watch them change and grow. On July 
31st, they'll be released at our Butterfly Release Party. Stay Tuned! 

▪ Odell Children’s Lending Library
This summer kids can come to the free outdoor lending library at the 
Odell Mobile Home park on Wednesdays and Saturdays to borrow 
books. There will be hundreds of books available for all ages of children. 
The items will not be cataloged in the system but lent on the honor 
system. This program is being advertised in the mobile home park and 
through the Mid-Valley Elementary School. The Odell Mobile Home park 
was the pick up location for our Odell Library Express Bus and we have 
greatly missed serving the children there. This program was funded with 
the Ready to Read Grant money from the State of Oregon.

Page 4

Board meeting agenda [2021-06-16], supplementary 6

https://hoodriverlibrary.org/event/story-time-hr-pk-cl/2020-04-02/


• Outreach programs

The kids team continues to distribute free books through the school 
district meal sites and the FISH Food Bank! The free books were funded 
by the Library Foundation. 

VI. Previous business
i. Reopening plans: Library Services Fox

We are offering Library Express Services at all three of
our branches. Patrons are invited into the building for 30
minutes to browse, use the computer and pick-up holds.
No appointment needed. 

Highlights of service:
• Browsing (30 minutes)
• Computer use (30 minutes)
• Restrooms closed at Cascade Locks and

Parkdale branches
• No furniture - seating and tables have

been removed from the public area to
encourage the 30 minutes time limit for
browsing.

• Curbside services available at all
branches by request.

We have expanded our hours! 
Hood River Library 

• Tuesdays, Wednesdays, Thursdays 10am-6pm 
• Fridays, Saturdays 10am-4pm

Cascade Locks and Parkdale Branches
• Tuesdays and Thursdays 2pm-6pm
• Saturdays 10am-2pm

Click here for full details: https:/hoodriverlibrary.org/current-library-services/ 

Governor Brown and Oregon OSHA has announced most workplace pandemic restrictions 
will be lifted when the state reaches 70% vaccination rate for adults 18 and over. I anticipate 
this will occur in the next 14-21 days. I recommend we follow the new guidelines issued by 
the Governor and Oregon OSHA. These new guidelines have not been released yet. I am 
anticipating masks will not be required and most occupancy limits will be removed. Based 
upon these upcoming changes, I recommend the following:

• Do not require masks but encourage them. We will continue to provide masks to staff 
and patrons.

Page 5

Board meeting agenda [2021-06-16], supplementary 7

https://hoodriverlibrary.org/current-library-services/
https://hoodriverlibrary.org/current-library-services/


• Restore the furniture to the public space but provide additional space between 
computers and in the seating areas.

• Open our public meeting rooms.
• Continue to follow the guidelines for offering programming to all ages, especially 

children. We must the guidelines issued for youth programs by the State of Oregon

Maintain our current operational hours during the month of July
• I would like to wait to restore our full operational hours at all our branches due to 

reduced staffing. In addition, we will be undergoing a significant transition in the month 
of July to fully restore the majority of our services. We reduced hours for two 
employees during the pandemic. One of our Public Service Clerks (19.5 hours) does 
not want to return to her position but move to substitute status. Another Public Service 
Clerk will continue at 10 hours per week instead of 19.5 hours until she moves from the
area in December. We will hire a Public Service Clerk for 30 hours per week and the 
position will change to 40 hours per week in 2022. This full time position was approved 
by the budget committee. We have advertised for the Public Service Clerk position and
Public Service Clerk Substitutes. We already allocate a specific amount of funds each 
month towards substitutes, so these new substitute hires will not cost the district 
additional money. We plan to have our new staff hired and trained by the end of July. 

I recommend we restore our fully operational hours at all our branches Tuesday, 
August 3. 

VII. New business   
i. 2021-22 Budget approval (ACTION) Sheppard

I. Budget hearing
Attachments: 

VII.i.a. Proposed 2021-22 budget
VII.i.b. Resolution 2020-21.05, adopting the budget and imposing taxes

Annually, the Board must approve the budget and tax rate for the coming fiscal year. The 
proposed 2021-22 budget, as approved by the Budget Committee at their May 18 meeting, is 
attached. There are no additional proposed changes from what the Budget Committee 
approved, unless Board members have recommendations. Final 2021-22 budget approval 
requires passage of Resolution 2020-21.05. Following approval, I will submit the proper 
paperwork to the County and State.

Before budget approval, the Chair must open the Budget Hearing, which gives the public an 
opportunity to comment on the budget. Notice was published in the June 9 th, 2021 edition of 
the Columbia Gorge News. 

ii. 2021-22 Salary Schedule approval (ACTION) Sheppard
Attachments:

VII.ii. 2021-22 and 2020-21 salary schedule

Page 6

Board meeting agenda [2021-06-16], supplementary 8



I propose the attached salary schedule for next fiscal year, which requires Board approval. 
This salary schedule gives all employees a 6.25% wage increase.

iii. Approval of recurring payments for 2021-22 (ACTION) Sheppard
Attachment: 

• VII.iii. Resolution No. 2020-21.06 - approving recurring and online payments for 
2021-22

Our auditors, Pauly Rogers & Co., recommend that the Board annually authorize the specific 
list of vendors whom we pay online and/or automatically. This mainly includes utilities and 
regular contract payments. The attached resolution provides this authorization. Online 
payments save significant time and money for the District. 

iv. Discussion of 2021-22 President and Vice-President positions  
Sheppard

At the July meeting, the Board will elect a new President and Vice President. For this agenda 
item, the Board will discuss who is willing to fulfill those positions.

v. Discussion of regular meeting time Sheppard
The Board's current regular meeting time is the third Tuesday of the month at 7:00pm. 
Annually the Board must adopt a resolution setting its regular meeting time. The Board will 
discuss the best meeting times so that a resolution can be passed during the July meeting.

vi. Library Director contract renewal (ACTION) Sheppard

The Library Director is the only District employee who works directly for the Board and also is 
the District's only contract employee. The contract typically is renewed annually. My contract 
is due to expire on June 30. With our legal counsel, I drafted a contract with the following 
changes. I changed the salary to $85,342 per year, which is the salary of step (3) on the 
2021-22 salary scale. As discussed when approving the scale, this includes a 6.25% wage 
adjustment increase, which all District employees will receive this fiscal year. As stated in my 
contract, I will receive a step increase when I receive my certification for the Certified Public 
Library Administrator program this fall or winter. 

Our lawyer is reviewing my contract. After he approves the changes, I will email the board a 
copy for your review before our board meeting. 

vii. Bookmobile Procurement (ACTION)                               Fox
Attachment: 

• VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles

I recommend we purchase our Bookmobile from Farber Specialty Vehicle through a 
cooperative purchasing agreement. We do not have to undergo a formal Request For 
Purchase (RFP). This vendor has been thoroughly vetted by being part of a cooperative 
purchasing program. The price is competitive to another vendor I contacted. 

Page 7

Board meeting agenda [2021-06-16], supplementary 9

http://www.farberspecialty.com/new-vehicles/bookmobiles/index.html


The cost of the bookmobile is $184,220. We added extra features and extra carts which allow 
us to easily switch out collections depending on the population we will be serving. We have 
the funds to cover the cost between the Foundation donation and the State Library grant. At 
the meeting we can go through all the features and I can answer any questions you may 
have. The spec sheet and quote is located in the board packet.

I’ll also work with library staff, Library Foundation and Library Board members to design the 
outside of the vehicle which will include the fruit tree motif with sponsor names. It will take 9-
10 months to complete. I anticipate we will launch the new bookmobile services in early 
Spring! 

Over the next 9-10 months, library staff will work on developing a plan for services. We’ll 
involve community organizations and gather input from our patrons through interviews and 
surveys.

viii. Window tint discussion                                                              Fox
I would like to have window tint film applied to the windows on the north side of the atrium, 
near the magazines/graphic novel area. In February, we had film installed in the south atrium 
windows and found it has helped with heat reduction and glare in the teen area. Since we 
also have a seating area in the north side for patrons it will also provide the same benefits 
and also protect our book collection in the sunlight which causes fading spine labels. The cost
of the film will be $2,750.50. I do not need formal board approval because it does not exceed 
my spending authority. I would like to hear your thoughts regarding the request. 

VIII. Agenda items for next meeting  Sheppard
• Board officer elections
• Appointing agents of record
• Resolution establishing regular meeting time
• Discussion Board Friends and Foundation liaisons

IX. Adjournment                                                                                            
_______________

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, 
Executive Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled
for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the 
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign 
language interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is 
given.

Page 8

Board meeting agenda [2021-06-16], supplementary 10



Board of Directors
Regular Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, May 18, 2021, 7:00pm
Zoom meeting

502 State St, Hood River
Jean Sheppard President

Notes prepared by Library Director Rachael Fox

Present: Karen Bureker, Brian Hackett, Megan Janik, Sara Marsden, Jean Sheppard, 
Rachael Fox 

The Hood River County Library District is taking steps to limit exposure and spread of COVID-
19 (novel coronavirus). In support of state and federal guidelines for physical distancing, the 
Hood River County Library District will hold this meeting by using Zoom Conferencing. 

Please use the following phone number or video link: 
1-253-215-8782 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88987942233
Meeting ID: 889 8794 2233

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Sheppard
Library Board President Jean Sheppard called the meeting to order at 7:11pm. Hackett made 
a motion to approve the agenda. Janik seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

II. Actual or potential conflicts of interest Sheppard
None stated.

III. Consent agenda (ACTION) Sheppard
i. Minutes from April 20, 2021 meeting

Hackett moved to approve the consent agenda. Marsden seconded. The motion carried 
unanimously.  

IV. Open forum for the general public    Sheppard
V. Reports 

i. Friends update   Fox
There was nothing to add to the written report. 

ii. Foundation update Fox
There was nothing to add to the written report. 

iii. April 2021 Financial Statements                                                                    Fox
The financial statements were not available at the time the board packet was released.

III.i.a. Minutes from the May 18, 2021, regular meeting 11

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88987942233


iv. Director's report
There was nothing to add to the written report. 

VI. Old business
i. Annual Planning session discussion Sheppard

Due to pandemic, the board will postpone the annual planning session this year. They will 
include updating the mission, vision and values in the strategic planning process. 

ii. Reopening plans: Curbside Services and Browsing and Computer 
Appointments Fox

The board agreed with the plan to eliminate appointments, limit occupancy in the children’s 
library in Hood River, offer a 30 minutes time limit for browsing, computers and offer no 
seating. Curbside will be available by requests only. The restrooms and drinking fountains will 
be open in Hood River. The Parkdale Library will be open for in-person visits on June 1.

Masks will continue to be required since library staff will not be checking vaccination status. 

VII. New business                                                                                              
i. Executive session: Library Director evaluation                    Sheppard

The board entered into executive session at 8:15pm and ended executive session at 8:31pm. 
              
VIII. Agenda items for next meeting  Sheppard

◦ 2021-22 budget approval
◦ Salary Schedule approval
◦ Approval of recurring payments for 2021-22
◦ Discussion of 2021-22 President and Vice-President positions
◦ Discussion of 2021-22 regular meeting time
◦ Library Director Contract approval

IX. Adjournment                                                                                                  Sheppard
The meeting was adjourned at 8:34pm.

Other matters may be discussed as deemed appropriate by the Board. If necessary, 
Executive Session may be held in accordance with the following. Bolded topics are scheduled
for the current meeting's executive session.

ORS 192.660 (1) (d) Labor Negotiations
ORS 192.660 (1) (e) Property
ORS 192.660 (1) (h) Legal Rights
ORS 192.660 (1) (i) Personnel

The Board of Directors meets on the 3rd Tuesday each month from 7.00 to 9.00p in the 
Jeanne Marie Gaulke Memorial Meeting Room at 502 State Street, Hood River, Oregon. Sign 
language interpretation for the hearing impaired is available if at least 48 hours notice is 
given.

Page 2

III.i.a. Minutes from the May 18, 2021, regular meeting 12



Budget Committee
Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, May 11, 2021, 6:00pm
Zoom meeting

Committee Chair: Jen Bayer
Budget officer: Rachael Fox

Present: Rachael Fox (staff), Jen Bayer, Karen Bureker, Brian Hackett, Megan Janik, Sara 
Marsden, Lani Roberts, Angela Schock, Jean Sheppard, Monica Zorza.

I. Nomination and election of Chair
Library Director called the meeting to order at 6:04pm. The committee conducted 
introductions. Roberts nominated Bayer to serve as Committee Chair. Bureker seconded. The
motion carried unanimously.

II. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Bayer
Roberts moved to approve the agenda as presented. Janik seconded. The motion carried 
unanimously. 

III. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest Bayer
None stated.

IV. Budget message Fox
Fox reviewed the budget message from the meeting packet. 

V. Presentation of proposed budget Fox
i. General Fund

Fox reviewed the different funds of the proposed budget. 

Roberts stated the District should offer option three to support staff and she would be happy 
to have an increase in her property taxes. Fox stated the District millage rate is set at $.39 per
thousand and can not be adjusted. Roberts stated she did not know that. 

Schock asked if there would be concerns with finding desk coverage if we made our two part-
time positions into one full-time position. Fox stated she would hire additional subs to ensure 
we have coverage and the benefit for having consistency at the District for staff and patron 
would be a greater benefit. In addition, Fox believes we will be able to retain an employee for 
longer period. 

Marsden asked if the salary survey adjusted the pay level to match Hood River County. Fox 
stated they adjusted the data as necessary, so that it matches the labor market pay level in 
Hood River, Oregon. 

III.i.b. Minutes from the May 11, 2021, Budget Committee Meeting 13



Schock asked if the jobs surveyed were in the library profession. Fox stated they were. 

The committee decided to revisit the decision regarding option one and two after hearing the 
rest of the budget message. 

Bayer asked if there needed to be any funds allocated for the Odell space the district is 
working toward leasing for up to one year. Fox stated we have the supplies we will need. She 
does not anticipate any additional expenses expect insurance which will be minimal. 

ii. Capital Equipment Reserve Fund
Fox reviewed the proposed capital projects for the next 5-20 years. Fox stated we have a 
solid foundation and enough funds to cover all our project expenses for the next 15 years. In 
addition, we will continue to save at least $25,000 per year.

iii. Grants Fund
Fox reviewed the capital fund and the breakdown of the proposed capital costs over the next 
10-20 years. Fox stated we currently have a solid foundation of $326,486. 

VI. Public comment Bayer
There were no members from the public present. 

VII. Budget Committee questions and deliberations Bayer
Bayer stated the three options did not specifically address the salary compensation 
recommendations but instead primarily addressed the need to make adjustments based upon
the minimum wage increase. 

Fox stated she presented the recommendation of a 6.25% increase with a step increase to 
the board at their April board meeting and asked for their feedback. They recommended 
presenting three options to the budget committee: 3% increase, 6.25% without a step 
increase, and full compensation as a comparison. They determined this would be a fiscally 
prudent option. Fox stated the proposal she recommended to the board did not make specific 
adjustments to each job classification but she focused on addressing the minimum wage 
increase first and stated it also addressed the need to increase the wages for all staff based 
upon the recommendations of the salary survey. Fox stated the board could discuss another 
potential increase next year especially since the district will need to raise wages to address 
the minimum wage increase from $12.75 to $13.50 per hour. Bayer stated she was pleased to
hear there may be further discussion since the staff were still being paid under the 
recommendation. 

Janik asked Fox if we would need to do another 6.25% increase to meet minimum wage 
increase. Fox stated she would have to calculate the figures but the district could decide the 
percentage since we could eliminate the levels for Clerk II if they did not meet the minimum 
wage requirements. For example, we could eliminate step I and II and start at step III. Fox 
also stated she would like to retain the entry level position if possible. Sheppard agreed. 

Bayer asked the committee which options they would like to approve.

Page 2

III.i.b. Minutes from the May 11, 2021, Budget Committee Meeting 14



Zorza stated she would like to see the figures for the 6.25% salary increase with the potential 
step increase. Fox stated she would need time to put the figures together in a new budget 
document for the board to review. 

Hackett stated he would like to vote for option 2 (6.25% increase with no step increase). 
Hackett stated he thinks staff should be compensated fairly but we also need to be fiscally 
prudent. He stated we could still address the recommendations presented in the salary survey
this year and then consider another increase next fiscal year. 

Sheppard stated she also would like to vote for option 2 (6.25% increase with no step 
increase). She stated that was a significant increase and agrees the district needs to be 
fiscally prudent.

Bayer stated library staff work hard and deserve to be compensated fairly for their work. She 
also stated managers need all the tools available to motivate their staff to do their best work 
possible. This can be accomplished by retaining a potential merit based step increase. 

Bayer, Roberts, Bureker, and Marsden stated they would also like to see the figures for the 
6.25% salary increase with the potential for a step increase. Bayer stated their were enough 
requests to see the additional figures to recess and met the following week to discuss the 
options. 

Janik stated she would also like to see the projected personnel costs for the fiscal year 2022-
23. The rest of the committee agreed. Fox stated she would provide the estimates at the next 
meeting.

VIII.Recess or adjournment Bayer
The meeting adjourned at 8:06pm.

Page 3

III.i.b. Minutes from the May 11, 2021, Budget Committee Meeting 15



Budget Committee
Meeting Minutes

Tuesday, May 18, 2021, 6:00pm
Zoom meeting

Committee Chair: Jen Bayer
Budget officer: Rachael Fox

Present: Rachael Fox (staff), Jen Bayer, Karen Bureker, Brian Hackett, Megan Janik, Sara 
Marsden, Lani Roberts, and Jean Sheppard.

I. Additions/deletions from the agenda (ACTION) Bayer
Bayer called the meeting to order at 6:03pm. Bureker moved to approve the agenda as 
presented. Marsden seconded. The motion carried unanimously. 

II. Conflicts or potential conflicts of interest Bayer
None stated.

III. Presentation of Revised budget Fox

i. General Fund

Fox reviewed two options presented to the committee. Option 1: 6.25% increase with no step 
increase and Option 2; 6.25% increase with a potential merit based increase. Fox also 
presented three different estimates for personnel costs for fiscal year 2022-23. 

ii. Capital Equipment Reserve Fund
There were no changes discussed in this fund.

iii. Grants Fund
Bayer stated there should be reference in the grants fund to the additional funds expected 
due to the bookmobile campaign. Fox stated she had meant to include it. The Cash On Hand 
section should state, “There will be additional carryover of the Library Foundation funds due 
to the fundraising campaign for the bookmobile”.

IV. Public comment Bayer
There were no members from the public present. 

V. Budget Committee questions and deliberations Bayer
Roberts asked if the difference between the two options was around $11,000. Fox stated that 
was correct. Fox stated she budgeted as though all staff members would receive the increase
July 1. She stated they would not since their review dates come at different times during the 
year. Also, not all staff would receive a step increase this year. Roberts stated she votes for 
option 2, (6.25% increase with a potential merit based increase).

III.i.c. Minutes from the May 18, 2021, Budget Committee Meeting 16



Hackett stated he votes for option one, (6.25% increase with no step increase). He stated he 
was concerned with the statement in the board packet that option 2 would expend $19,000 
more than the estimated revenue. Hackett stated he thought we were past this predicament. 
Fox stated we have always received more tax revenue than estimated in the amount of 
($23,000-$40,000) and we should also expect the additional revenue this year. Sheppard 
stated she was also concerned about this and stated we should include this estimate when 
planning the budget moving forward to be clear. Fox agreed and stated she would include it. 
[Notes added by Rachael Fox after the budget meeting on 5/21/21: The Budget Committee 
discussed at their Tuesday, May 18 meeting, that historically the District always receives more
tax revenue than anticipated because the revenue is based upon estimates. FY 2015-16, 
received +23,666, FY 16-17 +$17,709, FY 17-18 +26,999, FY 18-19 +23,413, FY 19-20 
$20,065, projected FY 20-21 +41,146. After further discussion, based upon these estimates, 
the District will not expend more than the anticipated revenue for this fiscal year]. Hackett 
stated he thinks staff should be compensated fairly but we also need to be fiscally prudent. 
He stated we could still address the recommendations presented in the salary survey this 
year and then consider another increase next fiscal year. 

Sheppard stated she also votes for option one, (6.25% increase with no step increase). 
Sheppard stated she would like to see what other government entities in Hood River County 
pay their staff. She did not think other government entities received an increase similar to our 
district and wanted to make sure we are aligned. Janik stated the county has been trying to 
increase wages for the county to compensate their employees. 

Bayer stated the county has been unable to increase wages due to revenue issues. Bayer 
stated we should be celebrating the District has been able to be fiscally responsible and is 
now able to increase the salaries for their employees to fairly compensate the library staff. 
Bayer states Fox works really hard at her job and has been conservative with funds which has
allowed the District to save the funds needed for capital projects and now pay staff a higher 
wage which they all deserve because all the library staff work really hard. 

Fox stated historically the wage was set low at the start of the District because there were 
limited funds. There has not been a compensation analysis done over the past twelve years.

Sheppard states it’s important to have talking points when discussing the reason for the 
increase with patrons in our community. The committee could let our community know the 
increase was made based upon a salary survey analysis which showed the compensation 
was below the recommended salary for all staff members. Fox added this was the first 
analysis conducted in the past twelve years. Bayer added the District has been fiscally 
prudent and has been able to save funds for capital projects and now fairly compensate staff 
for their wages.

The board voted to decide to chose option 1 or option 2. 

• Bayer voted for option 2.
• Hackett voted for option 1.
• Sheppard voted for option 1.

Page 2

III.i.c. Minutes from the May 18, 2021, Budget Committee Meeting 17



• Janik voted for option 1.
• Marsden voted for option 2.
• Bureker voted for option 2.
• Roberts voted for option 2. 

VI. Approval of budget (ACTION) Bayer
Bayer asked if anyone would like to make a motion to approve the budget with option 2, 
6.25% increase for library staff with a potential merit based step increase. Roberts moved to 
approve the budget resolution approving the 2021-22 budget, including the tax rate of 0.39 
per $1,000 of assessed property value. The budget was set at the following amounts:

• General Fund: $1,950,490
• Capital Equipment Reserve Fund: $147,000
• Grants Fund: $535,000
• Total: $2,632,490

Bureker seconded. The motion carried unanimously.

VII. Recess or adjournment Bayer
The meeting adjourned at 7:04pm.

Page 3

III.i.c. Minutes from the May 18, 2021, Budget Committee Meeting 18



Resolution No. 2020-21.06
Resolution authorizing vendors for

online and automatic payment of bills in 2021-22

WHEREAS, many companies allow paying for products and services electronically; and

WHEREAS, paying online and automatically rather than by paper check would save the Hood River County 
Library District time and money; and

WHEREAS, Hood River County Library District's Financial Management policy allows for such online 
payments;

Now, therefore be it RESOLVED, that the Hood River County Library District Board of Directors authorizes 
the following vendors for online payments and deposits in 2021-22.

• Amazon (Prime shipping benefits)
• AT&T (telecommunications)
• CenturyLink (telecommunications)
• City of Hood River (water)
• Columbia Bank (bank fees, payroll deposits, and employee reimbursements)
• Constant Contact (eNewsletter)
• Dropbox (Cloud storage)
• Facebook (Advertising)
• GoogleSuite (Email)
• Harland Clarke (bank checks, deposit slips, and other documents)
• Hood River Electric Co-op (telecommunications)
• Hostwinds (Web and email hosting)
• HRA VEBA (employee in-lieu health benefits)
• Lucidchart (Marketing design software)
• NW Natural (natural gas)
• Oregon Department of Revenue (state taxes)
• Pacific Power (electricity)
• PacificSource (medical, vision, and dental insurance)
• Resmark (Online forms)
• Ricoh (copier lease)
• Solutions Yes (Copier lease)
• Squarespace (Appointment software for library programs)
• Stamps.com (postage)
• T. Mobile (Parkdale WiFi patron units)
• T. Rowe Price (employee retirement)
• ThyssenKrup Elevator Corp. (building maintenance)
• US Bank (copier lease)
• US Treasury (federal taxes)
• Waste Connections/Hood River Garbage (garbage/recycling)
• Zoom (Video conferencing software)

Adopted by the Board of Directors of Hood River County Library District this 16th day of June 2021.
ATTEST:

____________________________ ____________________________
Jean Sheppard, President Rachael Fox, Library Director

Resolution 2020-21.06 - Resolution Authorizing Vendors for online and automatic payment of bills [2021-06-16] 19



V.iii.a. April 2021 financial statements 20



V.iii.a. April 2021 financial statements 21



V.iii.a. April 2021 financial statements 22



V.iii.a. April 2021 financial statements 23



V.iii.a. April 2021 financial statements 24



V.iii.a. April 2021 financial statements 25



V.iii.a. April 2021 financial statements 26



V.iii.a. April 2021 financial statements 27



V.iii.a. April 2021 financial statements 28



V.iii.b. May 2021 financial statements 29



V.iii.b. May 2021 financial statements 30



V.iii.b. May 2021 financial statements 31



V.iii.b. May 2021 financial statements 32



V.iii.b. May 2021 financial statements 33



V.iii.b. May 2021 financial statements 34



V.iii.b. May 2021 financial statements 35



V.iii.b. May 2021 financial statements 36



V.iii.b. May 2021 financial statements 37



GENERAL FUND
OR-LB-20 Resources Hood River County Library District

Historical Data

RESOURCES DESCRIPTION

Budget for Next Year 2021-22

Actual

1 647,425 694,723 671,532 655,000 Available cash on hand 830,000 830,000

2 16,071 19,915 22,461 12,000 Previously levied taxes estimated to be received 15,000 15,000

3 17,881 16,178 7,272 14,000 Interest 10,000 10,000

4 16,697 12,299 815 6,500 Fees 4,000 4,000

5 - 200 100 - Donations

6 4,600 2,637 7,272 - Intergovernmental revenue

7 2,736 4,354 322 - Miscellaneous revenue

8

9 705,410 750,306 709,774 687,500 Total resources, except taxes to be levied 859,000 859,000

10 1,029,687 Taxes estimated to be received 1,091,490 1,091,490

11 899,699 948,558 1,035,833 Taxes collected in year levied

12 1,605,109 1,698,864 1,717,187 TOTAL RESOURCES 1,950,490 1,950,490 -

Adopted Budget
This Year
2020-21

Proposed By
Budget Officer

Approved By
Budget 

Committee

Adopted By
Governing BodyFirst Preceding

Year 2018-19
First Preceding
Year 2019-20

YTD actuals
3/31/21

VII.i.a. Proposed 2021-22 budget 38



GENERAL FUND
LB-31 Detailed Requirements

Historical Data
Budget for Next Year 2021-22

Actual

Proposed by Approved by Adopted by

Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body

LIBRARY OPERATIONS

1 PERSONAL SERVICES

2 Salaries

3 3,285 6,769 5,324 7,638 Library Clerk I 8,281 8,281

4 92,968 98,255 70,236 107,038 Library Clerk II 115,605 115,605

5 48,646 57,568 71,561 56,196 Library Assistant I 68,838 68,838

6 88,732 104,607 43,120 58,378 Library Assistant II 63,265 63,265

7 70,529 67,269 52,487 118,113 Librarian I 128,034 128,034

8 45,246 45,511 40,481 60,258 Librarian II 65,291 65,291

9 72,910 77,327 60,015 80,330 Library Director 87,048 87,048

10 422,316 457,306 343,224 487,951 Total Salaries 536,362 536,362

11

12 Benefits

13 31,477 33,446 26,859 36,339 Retirement 43,068 43,068

14 32,842 35,564 26,424 36,596 FICA 40,226 40,226

15 1,164 118 20 1,300 Workers' compensation insurance 1,300 1,300

16 69,388 68,356 54,908 108,900 Health insurance 136,280 136,280

17 3,089 3,206 3,609 4,392 Unemployment insurance 6,310 6,310

18 480 - - - Other employee benefits

19 Paid family and medical leave 2,681 2,681

20 138,440 140,690 111,820 187,527 Total benefits 229,865 229,865

21

22 560,756 597,996 455,044 675,478 TOTAL PERSONAL SERVICES 766,227 766,227 -

22 11.15 Total Full Time Equivalent (FTE)* 11.35 11.35

23

24 LIBRARY OPERATIONS

REQUIREMENTS FOR: 
Hood River County Library District

Adopted Budget
This Year
2021-22

Second Preceding 
Year 2018-19

First Preceding 
Year 2019-20

YTD
3/31/2021

VII.i.a. Proposed 2021-22 budget 39



25 MATERIALS AND SERVICES

26 226 190 299 250 Bank charges 300 300

27 13,526 13,938 9,438 13,400 Building rental 13,400 13,400

28 22,767 16,940 11,725 20,000 Building maintenance 20,000 20,000

29 13,904 8,359 6,473 15,000 HVAC 15,000 15,000

30 2,185 2,086 1,609 2,350 Elevator 2,450 2,450

31 5,497 5,336 3,938 5,100 Telephone 5,220 5,220

32 5,121 2,450 2,025 3,300 Internet 5,840 5,840

33 74,409 74,051 48,407 83,000 Collection development 90,000 90,000

34 10,478 13,275 10,558 13,000 Technology 13,000 13,000

35 23,940 26,715 22,864 28,000 Accounting and auditing 29,000 29,000

36 1,866 1,747 1,515 2,300 Courier 2,300 2,300

37 20,473 20,136 17,787 25,200 Custodial services 29,000 29,000

38 5,081 5,157 3,700 4,000 Technical services 4,000 4,000

39 12,271 13,069 13,396 13,500 Library consortium 14,200 14,200

40 987 1,417 2,612 3,500 Copiers 3,500 3,500

41 1,603 - - 4,000 Elections - -

42 4,107 4,445 924 4,000 Furniture and equipment 4,000 4,000

43 9,059 13,002 13,134 13,700 Property and liability insurance 16,000 16,000

44 23,451 19,449 15,326 25,000 Georgiana Smith Memorial Gardens 25,000 25,000

45 4,113 2,915 1,558 4,000 Legal Services 4,000 4,000

46 - - - 25,000 Professional services 30,000 30,000

47 4,316 3,880 2,079 4,000 Membership dues 4,000 4,000

48 827 1,670 1,105 1,000 Miscellaneous 1,500 1,500

49 885 710 605 4,000 Postage/freight 1,000 1,000

50 539 298 184 500 Printing 500 500

51 15,110 13,213 8,553 20,000 Programs 20,000 20,000

52 779 1,250 369 2,000 Advertising 2,000 2,000

53 12,961 10,713 4,140 14,000 Office supplies 14,000 14,000

54 1,985 2,594 222 5,000 Travel 4,000 4,000

55 3,121 1,409 1,561 4,000 Training 4,000 4,000

56 2 81 - 1,500 Board development 1,500 1,500

57 200 200 - 500 Parking reimbursement 500 500

58 17,495 14,835 9,607 21,000 Electricity 21,000 21,000

59 1,468 1,418 1,187 1,800 Garbage 2,000 2,000

60 5,343 4,748 3,816 10,000 Natural gas 10,000 10,000

61 4,535 4,640 3,759 5,400 Water and sewer (building) 5,600 5,600

62
63 324,630 306,336 224,475 402,300 TOTAL MATERIALS & SERVICES 417,810 417,810 -

VII.i.a. Proposed 2021-22 budget 40



64

65 25,000 123,000 20,000 20,000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL RESERVE 25,000 25,000

66

67 - - - 100,000 CONTINGENCY 100,000 100,000

68

69 910,386 1,027,332 699,519 1,197,778 Total expenditures 1,309,037 1,309,037 -

70

71 - - - 12,000 Vacation Reserve 12,000 12,000

72 694,723 671,532 Ending Balance (Prior Years)

73 507,409 UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE 629,453 629,453 -

74 1,605,109 1,698,864 1,717,187 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 1,950,490 1,950,490 -

VII.i.a. Proposed 2021-22 budget 41



CAPITAL EQUIPMENT RESERVE FUND
LB-11 Resources and Requirements

Fund review year: 2021

Hood River County Library District

Historical Data

REQUIREMENTS DESCRIPTION
Budget for Next Year 2021-22

Actual
Proposed by Approved by Adopted by

Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body

1 RESOURCES
2 100,766 93,230 114,512 104,000 Cash on hand 120,000 120,000
3 2,252 2,359 1,107 1,500 Interest 2,000 2,000
4 25,000 123,000 20,000 20,000 Transfer from General Fund 25,000 25,000
5

6 128,018 218,589 135,619 125,500 TOTAL RESOURCES 147,000 147,000 -
7

8 REQUIREMENTS
9 31,788 111,714 - 75,000 Capital outlay 100,000 100,000

10 96,230 109,875 - Ending balance (prior years)
11 50,500 RESERVED FOR FUTURE EXPENDITURE 47,000 47,000 -

12 128,018 221,589 125,500 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 147,000 147,000 -

This fund is authorized and established by Resolution No. 2013-14.008 on May 20, 
2014, for the following specified purposes: capital outlay for land acquisition, 
building construction/improvements, installation
and repair of major building systems, and depreciable equipment.

Adopted Budget
This Year
2021-22

First Preceding
Year 2018-19

First Preceding
Year 2019-20

YTD
3/31/2021

VII.i.a. Proposed 2021-22 budget 42



SPECIAL FUND
LB-10 Resources and Requirements Hood River County Library District

GRANTS FUND
Historical Data

REQUIREMENTS DESCRIPTION
Budget for Next Year 2021-22

Actual

Proposed by Approved by Adopted by

Budget Officer Budget Committee Governing Body

1 RESOURCES

2 93,523 110,203 114,512 115,000 Cash on hand 245,000 245,000

3 9,752 9,133 31,692 75,000 Grants (specific purposes) 150,000 150,000

4 14,838 15,010 14,300 20,000 Friends of the Library donations 20,000 20,000

5 60,300 30,694 3,000 100,000 Library Foundation donations 100,000 100,000

6 - 5,500 8,000 20,000 Pat Hazelhurst Fund donations 20,000 20,000

7

8 178,413 170,540 171,504 330,000 TOTAL RESOURCES 535,000 535,000 -
9

10 REQUIREMENTS

11 Personal services

12 Salaries

13

14 1,019 886 - 5,000 Library Assistant II 5,000 5,000

15 2,197 1,065 - 5,000 Clerk I 5,000 5,000

16 Librarian I 5,000 5,000

17 Benefits

18 - - - Retirement

19 (7) - 750 FICA 750 750

20 - 250 Workman’s compensation 250 250

21 - - - - Health insurance

22 (1) - 100 Unemployment insurance 100 100

23

24 - - - 500 Other personal services 500 500

25

26 3,216 1,943 - 11,600 Total personal services 16,600 16,600 -

27

28 Materials and services

29 25,988 20,832 15,188 40,000 Collection development 60,000 60,000

30 6,030 1,429 815 15,000 Technology 30,000 30,000

31 21,879 15,676 11,173 30,000 Programs 38,400 38,400

Adopted Budget
This Year
2021-22

First Preceding 
Year 2018-19

First Preceding 
Year 2019-20

YTD
3/31/2021

VII.i.a. Proposed 2021-22 budget 43



32 5,842 8,300 6,682 40,000 Furniture and equipment 60,000 60,000

33 4,055 7,848 7,498 75,000 Other materials and services 80,000 80,000

34

35 63,794 54,085 41,356 200,000 Total materials and services 268,400 268,400 -

36

37 1,200 - 9,950 118,400 Capital outlay 250,000 250,000

38

39 110,203 114,512 Ending balance (prior years)

40 - UNAPPROPRIATED ENDING FUND BALANCE - - -

41 178,413 170,540 330,000 TOTAL REQUIREMENTS 535,000 535,000 -

VII.i.a. Proposed 2021-22 budget 44



Resolution No. 2020-21.05

Resolution adopting the budget, making appropriations,
imposing taxes, and categorizing taxes

Adopting the budget
Be it RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Hood River County Library District 

hereby adopts the budget for the fiscal year 2021-22 in the total of $2,632,490, now on
file in the Hood River Library

Making appropriations
Be it further RESOLVED, that the amounts for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021, are 

hereby appropriated for the purposes shown on page 2 (except General Fund 
“Unappropriated Ending Fund Balance / Reserve” is not appropriated).

Imposing the tax
Be it further RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Hood River County Library 

District hereby imposes the taxes as provided for in the adopted budget at the rate of 
$0.3900 per $1,000 of assessed value for operations, and that these taxes are hereby 
imposed and categorized for the tax year 2021-22 upon the assessed value of all 
taxable property within the District as follows:

Categorizing the tax
General government 
limitation

Excluded from limitation

General Fund $0.3900 / $1,000 $0.00

Adopted by the Board of Directors of Hood River County Library District this 16 th day of 
June, 2021.

ATTEST:

____________________________ ____________________________
Jean Sheppard, President Rachael Fox, Library Director

VII.i.b. Resolution 2020-21.05, adopting the budget and imposing taxes 45



Resolution No. 2020-21.075
2021-22 budget adoption

FUND:
Personal
Services

Materials
&

Services
Capital
Outlay

Debt
Servic

e
Interfund
Transfers Contingency

Special
Payment

s
(UEFB)
Reserve Total

General Fund $766,227 $417,810 $0 $0 $25,000 $100,000
$12,000

$629,453 $1,950,490

Capital Reserve Fund $0 $0 $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $47,000 $147,000

Grants fund
$16,600

$268,400 $250,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $535,000

Sage Library System Fund $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTALS $782,827 $686,210 $350,000 $0 $25,000 $100,000 $12,000 $676,453 $2,632,490

VII.i.b. Resolution 2020-21.05, adopting the budget and imposing taxes 46



Steps: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Clerk I $12.75 $13.01 $13.27 $13.54 $13.81 $14.09 $14.37

$26,520 $27,061 $27,602 $28,163 $28,725 $29,307 $29,890
Clerk II $14.67 $14.96 $15.26 $15.57 $15.88 $16.20 $16.52

$30,514 $31,117 $31,741 $32,386 $33,030 $33,696 $34,362
Library Assistant I $17.62 $17.97 $18.33 $18.70 $19.07 $19.45 $19.84

$36,650 $37,378 $38,126 $38,896 $39,666 $40,456 $41,267
Library Assistant II $20.25 $20.66 $21.07 $21.49 $21.92 $22.36 $22.81

$42,120 $42,973 $43,826 $44,699 $45,594 $46,509 $47,445
Librarian I $24.30 $24.79 $25.29 $25.80 $26.32 $26.85 $27.39

$50,544 $51,563 $52,603 $53,664 $54,746 $55,848 $56,971
Librarian II $29.58 $30.17 $30.77 $31.39 $32.02 $32.66 $33.31

$61,526 $62,754 $64,002 $65,291 $66,602 $67,933 $69,285
Library Director $39.44 $40.23 $41.03 $41.85 $42.69 $43.54 $44.41

$82,035 $83,678 $85,342 $87,048 $88,795 $90,563 $92,373

Range approved by the Board of Directors, June 16, 2021
Steps established by Library Director, May 11, 2021

Salary Schedule, 2021-22
(Personnel Polices, Appendix A)

VII.ii. 2021-22 and 2020-21 salary schedule 47



Steps: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Clerk I $12.00 $12.24 $12.48 $12.73 $12.98 $13.24 $13.50

$24,960 $25,459 $25,958 $26,478 $26,998 $27,539 $28,080
Clerk II $13.81 $14.09 $14.37 $14.66 $14.95 $15.25 $15.56

$28,725 $29,307 $29,890 $30,493 $31,096 $31,720 $32,365
Library Assistant I $16.58 $16.91 $17.25 $17.60 $17.95 $18.31 $18.68

$34,486 $35,173 $35,880 $36,608 $37,336 $38,085 $38,854
Library Assistant II $19.06 $19.44 $19.83 $20.23 $20.63 $21.04 $21.46

$39,645 $40,435 $41,246 $42,078 $42,910 $43,763 $44,637
Librarian I $22.87 $23.33 $23.80 $24.28 $24.77 $25.27 $25.78

$47,570 $48,526 $49,504 $50,502 $51,522 $52,562 $53,622
Librarian II $27.84 $28.40 $28.97 $29.55 $30.14 $30.74 $31.35

$57,907 $59,072 $60,258 $61,464 $62,691 $63,939 $65,208
Library Director $37.12 $37.86 $38.62 $39.39 $40.18 $40.98 $41.80

$77,210 $78,749 $80,330 $81,931 $83,574 $85,238 $86,944

Range approved by the Board of Directors, 
Steps established by Library Director, May 14, 2019

Salary Schedule, 2020-21
(Personnel Polices, Appendix A)

VII.ii. 2021-22 and 2020-21 salary schedule 48



Resolution No. 2020-21.06
Resolution authorizing vendors for

online and automatic payment of bills in 2021-22

WHEREAS, many companies allow paying for products and services electronically; and

WHEREAS, paying online and automatically rather than by paper check would save the Hood River County 
Library District time and money; and

WHEREAS, Hood River County Library District's Financial Management policy allows for such online 
payments;

Now, therefore be it RESOLVED, that the Hood River County Library District Board of Directors authorizes 
the following vendors for online payments and deposits in 2021-22.

• Amazon (Prime shipping benefits)
• AT&T (telecommunications)
• CenturyLink (telecommunications)
• City of Hood River (water)
• Columbia Bank (bank fees, payroll deposits, and employee reimbursements)
• Constant Contact (eNewsletter)
• Dropbox (Cloud storage)
• Facebook (Advertising)
• GoogleSuite (Email)
• Harland Clarke (bank checks, deposit slips, and other documents)
• Hood River Electric Co-op (telecommunications)
• Hostwinds (Web and email hosting)
• HRA VEBA (employee in-lieu health benefits)
• Lucidchart (Marketing design software)
• NW Natural (natural gas)
• Oregon Department of Revenue (state taxes)
• Pacific Power (electricity)
• PacificSource (medical, vision, and dental insurance)
• Resmark (Online forms)
• Ricoh (copier lease)
• Solutions Yes (Copier lease)
• Squarespace (Appointment software for library programs)
• Stamps.com (postage)
• T. Mobile (Parkdale WiFi patron units)
• T. Rowe Price (employee retirement)
• ThyssenKrup Elevator Corp. (building maintenance)
• US Bank (copier lease)
• US Treasury (federal taxes)
• Waste Connections/Hood River Garbage (garbage/recycling)
• Zoom (Video conferencing software)

Adopted by the Board of Directors of Hood River County Library District this 16th day of June 2021.
ATTEST:

____________________________ ____________________________
Jean Sheppard, President Rachael Fox, Library Director

VII.iii. Resolution No. 2020-21.06 - approving recurring and online payments for 2021-22 49



updated quote 1VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 50



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 2VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 51



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 3VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 52



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 4VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 53



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 5VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 54



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 6VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 55



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 7VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 56



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 8VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 57



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 9VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 58



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 10VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 59



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 11VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 60



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 12VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 61



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 13VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 62



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 14VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 63



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 15VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 64



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 16VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 65



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 17VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 66



2_PDFsam_VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 18VII.vii.a. Quotation – Bookmobile from Farber Specialist Vehicles 67


	GF resources
	GF expenditures
	Capital
	Grants
	2021-2022
	2020-2021

